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The 2014 financial year was challenging for the gold industry. This was reflected in the financial
performance of your company.
Vantage achieved gold production of 30,849 ounces in the 2014 year and continues to build on this
production record. Despite implementing ongoing cost reductions the Company reported a loss of
$2.1 million after accounting for tax, and our CEO, Mike McChesney, addresses the issues which
lead to this result in his following report.
Despite this headline result, there are positives and clear strengths in terms of your company’s
current position and in terms of its prospects for the future.
Vantage maintains a large resource base and is pursuing internal, organic growth options. Net cash of $2.4 million was
generated from its operations and together with borrowings allowed the company to invest a further $9 million in plant and
equipment during the year under review.
However, as a consequence of market and trading conditions VGO’s share price performed poorly. This enabled the
company to take advantage of the low share price with the share buyback approved in December being successfully
completed subsequent to year end.
The tragedy of a rock-drill contractor’s death at Barbrook Mine in September has forever marred the Company’s otherwise
commendable performance in terms of health and safety. A full investigation cleared Vantage and its management of any
wrongful actions.
I am pleased to acknowledge that management and the wider organisation advanced a number of growth-orientated
projects, despite the challenging business conditions. Mike’s commentary refers to some of these. Growth at Vantage
occurs in a diligent, disciplined and cautious manner.
The prospects for resource companies are linked, in large measure, to global economic conditions, and Vantage’s
performance is particularly tied to South Africa’s economic performance. For example further weakness in the ZAR would
significantly enhance profitability, while prolonged industrial action could cause material damage. Vantage is well
positioned to benefit from further increases in the ZAR price of gold through positive earnings, margin expansion and
associated free cash flow generation.
I would like to acknowledge the dedication, professionalism and support of my fellow directors, as well as the efforts of
management and Vantage’s employees and thank shareholders for their continuing interest and support.

Stephen Turner
Non-executive Chairman
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1.

HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2014






2.

Increased gold production at both mines;
Improved safety record – LTIFR 0.9 per 1,000 shifts;
Gross profit of A$4.7 million;
Loss after tax of A$2.1 million;
Further expansion planned to improve profitability.

SUMMARY OVERVIEW
Combined gold production continued to increase and has risen five-fold from what it was five years ago. A total of
30,850 oz of gold was produced from 505,885 tonnes of ore milled at a recovered grade of 1.90 g/t. This represents
an 11% increase on the previous year, when 27,826 oz were produced.
Revenue from gold sales, which
has been static for two years,
increased only 7% as the gold
price continued to decline
during 2014. The average gold
price received by the Company
for the year was US$1,265 per
oz (2013: U$1,367 per oz).
Cash operating costs reduced
slightly to US$1,089 per oz
(2013: US$1,095 per oz). This
reduction was not sufficient to
prevent the gross margin
slipping (from 40% in 2012 and
20% in 2013) to 14% in 2014. As
a result, Gross Profit was
reduced to A$4.7 million and a
Net Loss of A$2.1 million.
Capital expenditure, largely funded from a A$12.5 million loan, was A$9.0 million. Most of this was incurred at the
Lily Mine, which is expected to reach full production of 30,000 oz per annum in the second half of 2015. Total loan
repayments of A$4.4 million were made during the year. The Company also completed a share capital reduction and
de-listed from the ASX at a cost of A$2.5 million, the financial effect of which was only incurred after year end.

3.

SAFETY AND HEALTH
The safety record of the Company improved during the year, in which the Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR)
reduced to 0.9 per 1,000 shifts. Despite this achievement, an underground accident at the Barbrook Mine led to the
death of a contractor worker due to his own negligence.
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4.

LABOUR RELATIONS
The unstable labour situation in South Africa remains tense. Trade unions throughout the country, particularly
within the mining industry, continue to make unrealistic demands and are prepared to force extended strikes in
order to advance their interests. While this macro-environment is economically unsettling, labour relations between
the Company and its recognised union, AMCU, remain sound. Wage negotiations were again conducted in an
orderly manner and without incident during 2014, and every effort will be made to maintain this relationship going
forward.

5.

OPERATIONS REVIEW
Lily Mine
The underground development rate decreased slightly to 3,397 metres for the year as austerity measures were put
in place to counter the reduced operating margins. However, development rates were sufficient to ensure adequate
production flexibility within the stoping operations. The new mining layout implemented in 2013 added to
increased stoping efficiency. The development rate will be increased again once margins improve in order to
provide the mine with maximum flexibility and stope availability,
Gold production rose by 10% to 24,845 oz. Tonnes milled and ore grade increased despite a setback in the first
quarter when the lower levels of the mine had to be temporarily abandoned because of flooding. This was caused
by an unusual ingress of water after high rainfall at the end of the summer.
Additional trackless mining machinery was purchased during the year in order to supplement the existing fleet. Late
delivery of certain crucial equipment had an adverse effect on operations, however this has since been rectified.
Despite the availability of requisite skills in certain disciplines, the mine is still well placed to ramp up to full
production of 30,000 oz per annum during 2015.
The South African mining industry was subjected to a spate of mine inspections during the latter half of 2014. Many
of these inspections resulted in mine closures for periods of days or weeks. The Lily Mine was no exception and it,
too, suffered an unnecessary one week closure resulting in lost production.
The mine produced a gross profit of A$8.4 million and capital expenditure was A$7.1 million for the year. Cash
operating costs were US$1,031/oz and All-in sustaining costs were US$1,212/oz.
Barbrook Mine
Underground development increased to 1,094 metres. Gold production also increased by 16% to 6,005 oz as a
consequence of higher tonnages mined and milled and improved gold recovery.
Sadly, a fatal underground accident in September 2014 led to the death of a contract worker due to his own
negligence. The mine was closed for one week pending the government enquiry.
Stoping operations which were previously spread throughout the mine, were concentrated into two areas. The
main production area was focused on the 7 Level French Bob ore body, while the new 10 Level decline was
commenced to access the new ore reserves below 10 Level. This strategy improved the level of supervision and
efficiency in the underground operations.
The processing plant performed well and plant recovery increased to 60% for the year. The complex nature of the
Barbrook ore remains a challenge and it is unlikely that this level of recovery will be exceeded until further
improvements and additions can be made to the processing circuit.
The mine made a gross profit of A$0.3 million for the year and capital expenditure was A$1.9 million. Cash
operating costs were US$1,252/oz and All-in sustaining costs were US$1,435/oz.
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Tons milled

(t)

Head Grade

(g/t)

387 534

118 351

505 885

2.24

2.62

2.33

Recovery

(%)

89

60

81

Yield

(g/t)

1.99

1.58

1.90

Gold Produced

(oz)

24 845

6 005

30 850

Cash Costs

(US$/oz)

1,031

1,252

1,083

PROPOSED BEE RE-STRUCTURE
The Company’s long standing BEE partner, Lomshiyo Investments Pty Limited, has been unable to honour its
commitment to repay its vendor-financed loan to the Company and is unlikely to do so in for foreseeable future.
Accordingly, by mutual agreement, this relationship will be dissolved and the Company will restructure its BEE
partnership. The new structure will require a cash investment to acquire the shareholding, which funds will be used
to further expand production at the Barbrook Mine.

7.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Preliminary feasibility studies conducted at the Barbrook Mine over the past 4 years, which concentrated mainly on
metallurgical test work, have resulted in the compilation of a comprehensive plan to expand production at the mine
and improve margins. The favourable results arising from these extensive investigations justify pursuing the
opportunity to implement the next phase of expansion (Barbrook Stage 2 Expansion Plan), which involves increasing
the mining rate by 50%.
The bulk of the ore will be sourced from ore bodies currently being mined, viz Taylors, French Bob and Twala. The
remainder of the ore scheduled to be extracted in the mining plan will be derived from accessing the high grade,
Daylight ore body to the north east of the present workings.
The principal component of the plan resides in the metallurgical processing of the complex Barbrook ore. The
proposed processing circuit will include the implementation of three tried and tested technologies, being:




Pre-concentration to remove waste and low grade ore by Dense Media Separation (DMS);
Pre-oxidation by patented BIOX technology to improve gold extraction;
Neutralisation of preg-robbers (i.e. the absorption of gold onto excessive organic carbon in the ore) by
the patented HiTeCC process.

These processes have been rigorously tested on site and have been shown to improve gold recovery from 60% to
80%. The Expansion Plan is entirely dependent on new funding which is expected to be sourced from the pending
BEE transaction. The project has an IRR of 63% and a payback of 3 years at the current gold price.
8.

EXPLORATION
The 25% drop in the gold price in 2013 necessitated the curtailment of all exploration activities. As a result, no
exploration was carried out during 2014. While the Company’s Prospecting Rights hold excellent exploration
potential, as indicated by the prospecting work conducted from 2010 to 2013, it should be noted that 90%
(approximately 4 million oz) of the Company’s existing mineral resources are located within the Lily and Barbrook
Mines. Attention is, therefore, focused in the short term on expanding these operations until exploration can be
recommenced.
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9.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Gold revenue increased
marginally
to
A$43.2
million. The average gold
price of US$1,265/oz for
2014 was only marginally
higher than that received
five years ago. The negative
impact
of
this
has,
however, been mitigated to
a large degree by the
weakening of the South
African currency.
While cash operating costs
reduced
slightly
to
A$1,083/oz, the gross
margin reduced from 20%
in 2013 to only 14% in
2014. As a result, the Company made a Cash Operating Profit of only A$4.7 million and a Net Loss of A$2.1 million.
Capital expenditure was AS9.0 million, which was funded largely from a loan of US$12.5 million taken out in March
2014. Cash reserves at year end were A$3.8 million.

10.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
The Company’s immediate strategy is to restore gross margins to at least 30% at the current gold price. This will be
achieved by increasing gold production and driving down costs by optimising gold recovery at the Barbrook Mine.
The Lily Mine is now fully funded and is expected to reach full production of 30,000 oz per annum in the second half
of 2015. Further infrastructural requirements, which are in the process of being planned, are required to be
introduced at Lily over the next few years. Enhancements to the mining operations are also underway with the
objective of improving mined ore grade and plant recovery.
Pending the outcome of a new BEE investment, and the consequent injection of investor funding, Barbrook Mine
will undergo the next phase of expansion. This is designed to take Barbrook’s production to 18,000/oz per annum
and reduce Barbrook’s cash costs to less than US$750 oz.
The Company’s medium term strategy is, therefore, to increase production to between 45,000/oz and 50,000/oz
per annum and approve the gross margin to in excess of 30%.
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Vantage Goldfields Limited has updated its Mineral Resource and Ore Reserve estimates for the twelve month period
ending 31 December 2014. Total Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves have been adjusted to take account of scheduled
underground ore extraction, underground in-fill diamond drilling, prospect drilling below underground operating levels and
routine production sampling completed during 2014.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s Mineral Resources are estimated to contain 4.34 million ounces of gold. The overall
effect of the latest Mineral Resource revaluation, compared with the estimate at 31 December 2013 (see Table 1), has
resulted in a net decrease in contained gold ounces by an amount of 354,480 (7.5%).
Mineral Resources (100% basis)
As at December 2014
Tonnes
Grade
(millions)
(g/t)
Lily Mine (Vantage interest 85% decreasing to 74%)
Measured
7.11
2.22
Indicated
5.76
2.09
Inferred
13.6
2.09
Total
26.47
2.13
Barbrook Mine (Vantage interest 74%)
Measured
3.38
3.20
Indicated
2.91
4.44
Inferred
8.41
4.79
Total
14.70
4.36
Worcester Mine (Vantage interest 74%)
Measured
0
0.00
Indicated
1.87
3.98
Inferred
1.50
3.54
Total
3.37
3.78
Other projects (Vantage interest 74%)
Measured
0.05
3.75
Indicated
0.50
4.42
Inferred
0
0.00
Total
0.55
4.34
Total Group
45.09
3.00

As at December 2013
Gold
(oz)

Tonnes
(millions)

Grade
(g/t)

Gold
(oz)

507,400
387,100
914,100
1,808,600

8.07
2.21
12.83
23.11

2.58
2.92
2.67
2.66

669,360
207,690
1,101,460
1,978,510

348,200
415,400
1,295,100
2,058,700

3.74
2.82
8.00
14.56

3.69
4.79
5.15
4.70

444,310
434,990
1,322,970
2,202,270

0
238,700
172,100
410,800

0
1.87
1.50
3.37

0.00
3.98
3.54
3.78

0
238,700
172,100
410,800

6,000
39,000
0
45,000
4,343,100

0.61
0.50
0
1.11
42.15

2.40
3.67
0.00
2.97
3.47

47,000
59,000
0
106,000
4,697,580

Note: Mineral Resources are inclusive of Ore Reserves
Note: Rounding Tons (000), Kg Au (0), Ounces (00). This may cause some apparent discrepancies in totals.
The variance in the Group’s Mineral Resources from 31 December 2013 to 31 December 2014 reflects adjustments in
geological modelling and computation, additional data and expanded mining operations within the Measured and Indicated
Resources at the two operating mines (Lily and Barbrook). Specific reasons will be dealt with in the individual Company
sections. All Mineral Resources at the other dormant mines and projects within the Group remain unchanged for this
period.
At Lily Mine, an increase by 14.5% in Mineral Resource tonnage is reported, mainly in the Indicated category, but at lower in
situ grades. The increase of 2% (17,450 oz) in contained ounces within the Measured and Indicated Resource categories,
from the previous year’s estimates, is a consequence of re-modelling (geologically and geo-statistically) and based on
additional information derived from easterly extensional ore development, drilling and sampling during the course of
normal mining operations in 2014.
At Barbrook Mine, no material change is reported in Mineral Resource tonnage. Portions of existing Inferred and Indicated
Resources have been upgraded respectively as a result of additional underground development, sampling and in-fill
diamond drilling conducted during 2014, focused specifically on the main Taylors/French Bob/Twala (“TFT”) Sections. The
decrease (13%) in contained ounces in the Measured and Indicated Resource categories reflects modifications to geological
modelling and depletion of historical stopes that depleted higher grade tonnages in the TFT Sections (between 7 and 10
Levels).
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s Ore Reserves are estimated to contain 616,900 ounces of gold. This represents a
decrease of 99,800 ounces (14%) from the estimate at 31 December 2013. The Group Ore Reserve estimates are shown in
Table 1.
At Lily Mine the Ore Reserve (Table 2) is calculated from the tonnage-grade table derived from the updated block model
which determines the underground mine design and production sequence. Ore Reserves relate to current underground
operations scheduled at Lily Mine using Datamine Mine24D software.
At Barbrook Mine the Ore Reserve reported (Table 2) is located within the “TFT” Sections. Localised ore development and
diamond drilling during 2014 has continued to supplement the available geological information and predictive confidence
of Ore Reserves from within the Measured and Indicated Resource categories.
Modifying factors used in Life of Mine planning for both these operating mines are discussed in the relevant sections below.
VGL conducted a pre-feasibility study at the dormant Worcester Mine (Table 2) in 2011. No change has been made to this
estimate.

Mineral Resource and Ore Reserve assumptions
Updated mining, metallurgical and long term cost assumptions have been calculated with reference to recent performance
data. The following assumptions have been used in all Ore Reserve estimates.
Gold Price:
Exchange Rate:

US$1,200 per ounce
R11.50 per US$.
Ore Reserves (100% basis)
As at December 2014
Tonnes
(millions)

As at December 2013

Grade
(g/t)

Gold
(oz)

Tonnes
(millions)

Grade
(g/t)

Gold
(oz)

Lily Mine (Vantage interest 85% decreasing to 74%)
Proved
0.50
2.56
Probable
4.37
2.36
Total
4.87
2.38

41,200
331,800
373,000

0.39
5.55
5.94

2.37
2.53
2.50

26,700
451,500
478,200

Barbrook Mine (Vantage interest 74%)
Proved
0.18
Probable
0.64
Total
0.82

3.80
4.17
4.10

22,800
85,500
108,300

0.48
0.29
0.78

4.17
4.02
4.11

65,000
37,900
102,900

Worcester Mine (Vantage interest 74%)
Proved
0
Probable
1.40
Total
1.40

0.00
3.01
3.01

0
135,600
135,600

0
1.40
1.40

0.00
3.01
3.01

0
135,600
135,600

Combined Group
Proved
Probable
Total Group

2.91
2.68
2.71

64,000
552,900
616,900

0.87
7.24
8.11

3.27
2.67
2.74

91,700
625,000
716,700

0.68
6.41
7.09

Note: Ore Reserves are included in Mineral Resources
Note: Rounding Tons (000), Kg Au (0), Ounces (00). This may cause some apparent discrepancies in totals.
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JORC Code 2012 and Competent Persons
It is VGL’s policy to report its Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves in compliance with the JORC Code (2012 Edition) of the
Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy.
The Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves were calculated and reviewed by VGL’s Competent Persons and independently
audited by Mr Frank Dabrowski of Geo-Consult International (Pty) Ltd.

Competent Persons Statement
The principal Competent Persons responsible for the Mineral Resource and Ore Reserve information in this announcement are Mr S
Mawson, Mineral Resource Management Consultant, who is a member of the South African Council for Natural Scientific Professions
(“SACNASP”) and Mr M Begg, Director Operations, who is a member of the Geological Society of South Africa (“GSSA”) and SACNASP. The
GSSA is a Recognised Overseas Professional Organisation" (“ROPO”). Mr Mawson is responsible for the Mineral Resource modelling. Mr
Begg is responsible for the Mineral Resource reporting. Both persons are full time employees of Vantage Goldfields. The Competent Person
responsible for the Independent Audit of the Mineral Resources is Mr F Dabrowski, BSc Eng (Mining Geology) (Wits); MSc Mineral
Exploration (Rhodes); Pr Sci Nat; Director of Geo-Consult International Pty Ltd. All three persons have sufficient relevant experience to
qualify as Competent Persons as defined in the 2012 Edition of the “Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves”.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Your Directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2014 together with the financial report of Vantage
Goldfields Limited (“the Company” or “Vantage”) and of the Group, being the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial
year to 31 December 2014 and the auditor’s report thereon.
DIRECTORS
The names and details of the Company’s directors in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as
follows. Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.
Mr Stephen Turner (Non-Executive Chairman)
Stephen Turner has over 20 years experience in financial markets and for the last 20 years has specialised in the natural
resources sector. Stephen has delivered resource projects in Australia, Southern Africa, Fiji, New Caledonia and the Solomon
Islands. He was the founder of International Ferro Metals Limited and founding director of the Australian subsidiary of PSG
Investment Group (at one time South Africa’s sixth largest investment bank). He has an extensive network of business contacts
and has raised equity capital in Australia, the UK, Hong Kong, Malaysia and the USA. Stephen is an Australian Chartered
Accountant.
Mr Michael (Mike) McChesney (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr McChesney was educated in Johannesburg, where he graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering
from the University of the Witwatersrand in 1973 and a Bachelor of Science in Mining Engineering from the University of
the Witwatersrand in 1975. Mr McChesney is a registered Professional Engineer with the Engineering Council of South
Africa and is a member of the South African Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. He has over 35 years experience in
engineering, mine management and corporate management.
Mr McChesney has held various senior positions including Chief Executive Officer of several mining companies. His
responsibilities have included mineral exploration, feasibility studies, engineering design, project management, operations
and general management. Recently Mr. McChesney has been involved in establishing and developing a number of gold
mining companies in Southern Africa.
Mike McChesney is the founder of Vantage Goldfields and has been Chief Executive Officer of the Group since October
2005.
Mr Mike Begg (Director Operations) appointed 31 January 2014
Mr Begg qualified at the University of Cape Town with BSc (Hons) Geology in 1987, worked initially for the Company for a
two year stint in 1997/98 and was involved in the early exploration of the Lily Mine prior to production in 2000. Mr Begg
has been involved in greenstone geology since 1988 while working as Exploration Geologist and later Chief Geologist for
other local mining companies, including Barbrook Mines. He rejoined Vantage in mid-2006 as Technical Manager,
responsible for the management of the Group’s mineral resources and reserves, all geological functions, both on-mine and
regional exploration, and various other technical issues. He was appointed General Manager in May 2011 for both the Lily
and Barbrook mining operations.
Mr Derrick Short (Chief Financial Officer) appointed 31 January 2014
Mr Short has served as Finance Director for the South African subsidiaries since 2005. Mr Short was educated in Pretoria,
South Africa where he graduated with a Bachelor of Accounting Science degree from the University of South Africa in 1992.
Mr Short was initially trained as an auditor after completing his compulsory work experience with a major accounting firm
before moving into the mining industry. He has over 20 years’ experience in the mining industry and has held various
positions including financial, administrative, budgetary control and general management positions.

Dr. William Morton (Willo) Stear (Non-Executive Director)
Dr Stear is a graduate of the University of Stellenbosch, the University of the Witwatersrand and the Nelson Mandela
Metropolitan University. His post-graduate qualifications include a Master of Science degree, cum laude, in Economic
Geology in 1976, a Doctorate (PhD) in Sedimentary Geology in 1980, a Master of Science degree in Mining Engineering in
1986 and a Master of Philosophy degree, cum laude, in Ancient Cultures in 2006.
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Dr Stear is a registered Natural Scientist with the South African Council for Natural Scientific Professions, a Fellow of the
Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, a Fellow of the South African Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and a
Fellow of the Geological Society of South Africa. He is an internationally acknowledged “Competent Person” or "Expert".
Dr Stear has nearly 40 years of experience in mineral exploration, mining geology and mineral economics, most of which has
been in a management and advisory capacity. Dr Stear's professional career has included the analysis and planning of gold
mining projects. He has held various senior positions in major mining companies in South Africa, including Exploration
Manager and Consulting Mining Geologist. He also has served on the board of directors of various junior resource companies.
He founded and managed a mineral industry consultancy company which specializes in independent technical and
economic evaluations of mining companies and mineral projects. He has further developed related expertise in resource
investment banking.
Dr Stear has been a Director of the Eastern Goldfields, Inc Group since October 2005.
On 31 January 2014 Dr Stear became a non-executive director.
Mr Terence Willsteed (Non-Executive Director)
Terry Willsteed holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Mining) with Honours and is a Fellow of the Australasian Institute of
Mining and Metallurgy. Since 1973 he has been the principal of consulting mining engineers Terence Willsteed &
Associates.
His 50 year career in the mining industry has included senior operational management and engineering positions with Zinc
Corporation, Mt Isa Mines Limited and Consolidated Goldfields Limited. In his consulting experience, Mr Willsteed has been
involved in the assessment and development of a wide range of mineral, coal and oil shale projects, and has participated in
the management of developing and operating mineral projects both in Australia and internationally.
Mr Gilbert Chalk (Non-Executive Director)
Gilbert Chalk (British) completed a BSc at Southampton University, an MA in Business at Lancaster University and in 1972
obtained an MBA from Columbia University, New York. He worked in corporate finance at Hill Samuel Bank before joining
Hambros Bank in 1980 as a manager and, subsequently, became a director in their corporate finance department. In 1987
he founded and became managing director of Hambro European Ventures, a buy out and development capital fund
management company, a position he held until 1994. He subsequently became head of corporate finance for ABSA Bank in
London. From 2000 to 2010 he was executive chairman of the Baring English Growth Fund. He is a former Council Member
of the British Venture Capital Association. He currently is Chairman of Castle Private Equity AG and Aurora Russia Limited.
Mr Wayne Kernaghan (Company Secretary)
Wayne Kernaghan is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia with over 25 years experience in
various areas of the mining industry. He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and a Chartered
Secretary.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity for the Group comprising Vantage Goldfields Limited (“the Company”) and its controlled entities
(together “the Group”) during the course of the financial period was gold mining and exploration. There was no significant
change in the nature of the Group’s activities during the period.
RESULTS
The loss attributable to the Group after income tax for the financial year was ($2,122,850) [2013: profit $1,314,381].
Income tax attributable to this result was a benefit of $2,004,608 [2013: $1,267,595].
DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors resolved not to declare a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014. No dividend has been
declared or paid by the company since the end of the previous financial year.
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OPERATING REVIEW
OVERVIEW
Gold production from the two operations increased by 11%, despite a number of difficulties throughout the year.
Total tons milled increased to 505,885 tonnes (2013: 466,311) and gold produced increased to 30,849 ounces
(2013: 27,826 ounces) during the year.
The Group holds “new order” mining rights for its Lily and Barbrook Mines and it has applied for renewal of its
“new order” prospecting rights over the remaining mineral tenements in the Barberton goldfield. The South
African subsidiaries are in the process of restructuring their BEE partnership to comply with current legislation.
The restructuring is scheduled to be completed by mid 2015.
In line with the cost saving measures put in place in 2013, no exploration was carried out during the year.
SAFETY AND HEALTH
Sadly the company suffered a fatality at the Barbrook Mine on 6 September 2014 when a contract miner, having
ignored the safety standards, lost his life after falling into an open stope.
The Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate was maintained at 1.1 per thousand shifts. The company continues to strive
to improve the health and welfare of its employees by continuously improving the safety standards.
LILY MINE
During the year under review production from the Lily mine was below target but still reflected an increased to
387,534 tonnes milled and 24,845 ounces of gold produced (2013: tonnes milled 363,095 and 22,663 ounces of
gold). The mine produced a gross profit of A$8.41 million while capital expenditure was A$7.05 million.
Production in the first quarter was hampered by high rainfall resulting in an unusual ingress of water which flooded
the lower levels and resulted in the temporary abandonment of some stoping areas. Normal production was
resumed after three months.
In the latter part of the year, efforts to ramp up production were delayed by the late delivery of certain crucial
trackless mining machinery. The situation has since been resolved.
During this time the Lily mine was subjected to a number of inspections by the Inspector of Mines from the
Department of Mineral Resources. Following one such inspection, the Lily mine was closed for a period of 4 days
while the situation was addressed.
All trackless equipment is now on site, and great effort has been made to comply with all the safety requirements
in order to avoid any further mine closures. The mine is now well placed to ramp up production to optimum
production levels.
BARBROOK MINE
Production improved by 16% with 118,351 tonnes milled and 6,005 ounces of gold produced (2013: 103,171 tonnes
milled and 5,163 ounces of gold). The mine produced a gross profit of A$0.31 million while capital expenditure was
A$1.91 million.
The development of the decline below 10 level in the French Bob ore body commenced during the year in order to
provide supplementary high grade ore to the mill feed. Plant recoveries improved significantly with the installation
of additional carbon in leach tank and the introduction of the HiTecc process.
As a result of the fatal accident at the Barbrook Mine the mine was closed by the Department of Mineral Resources
for a period of one week.
The Barbrook expansion plan was postponed in 2014 to allow for a complete re-evaluation involving the refining of
the Mineral Resource estimates, revising the mine plan and enhancing the plant recoveries. It is intended to
commence the expansion plan in 2015.
The dispute resolution process with regards to the Mine2Market Off-take claim is currently ongoing and is yet to be
finalised.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The Lily Mine should reach close to its planned full production rate of 30,000 oz pa in 2015. This will then be
maintained for the life of the mine which is estimated at 11 years under current circumstances.
The Barbrook Mine is scheduled to increase production by 40% in 2015 to 8,500 oz. This will be achieved by
increasing the underground mining rate and installing a DMS pre-concentrator.
The company’s BEE partner, Lomshiyo Investments Pty Ltd, has until now been vendor financed by the company,
who intends to restructure this arrangement. Discussions are taking place, which if successful, will result in a
significant cash investment in the company. These funds will be used to initiate the Stage 2 expansion programme
and ramp up production to 18,000 oz pa by further increasing production in the current Taylors/French Bob area
and installing a BIOX plant and HiTeCC plant to maximise recovery to in excess of 80%
Barbrook has also applied to the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC) for a loan to further develop the mine.
This funding, if obtained, will allow the Stage 3 expansion programme to take production to 27,000 oz pa and
ultimately 54,000 oz pa.
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
The company completed a capital reduction and share buy-back in January 2015 and was delisted from the ASX on
19 January 2015. The cost to the company of the share buy-back was A$2.5 million.
In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group that occurred during the
financial year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial statements.
MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE
Subsequent to year end the company was able to re-negotiate the repayment terms for the loan with Alchemist, which
resulted in a payment holiday for the March 2015 quarter.
Other than those outlined above and in note 24 to the financial statements, no matters or circumstances have arisen since
31 December 2014 that have significantly affected or may significantly affect:




the Group’s operations in future financial years; or
the result of those operations in future financial years; or
the Group’s state of affairs in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS
Further information on likely developments in the operations of the entity and the expected results of operations have not
been included in this report because the Directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
entity.
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION
The Group is compliant with all the environmental regulations which apply to it and is not aware of any environmental
matter which would have a materially adverse impact on the overall business of the Group.
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company has entered into deeds of indemnity with the Directors and certain key personnel indemnifying them against
certain liabilities and costs to the extent permitted by law.
AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE
The directors have received the auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2014 which is on
page 15 and forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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PHANTOM SHARE OPTION PLAN
All options were granted in the previous financial years. No options have been granted since the end of the previous financial
year.
Expiry date

Exercise price

Number of shares

30 September 2015

$0.40

3,550,000

No options were exercised by Key Management Personnel during the financial year ended 31 December 2014.
EQUITY SETTLED SHARE OPTIONS
Unissued shares under options
All options were granted in the previous financial years. No options have been granted since the end of the previous financial
year.
At the date of the report the unissued shares of the Group under option are

Expiry date

Exercise price

Number of shares

31 December 2017

$0.15

3,600,000

All unissued shares are ordinary shares of the Company. No options were exercised during the financial year ended 31 December
2014.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

M McChesney
Sydney
10 April 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Notes

Gold and silver sales

2014

2013

$

$

43,188,527

40,357,227

Cost of sales

(38,490,130)

(33,388,044)

Gross profit

4,698,397

6,969,183

Other income
Administration expenses
Exploration expenses

41,244

23,786

(3,067,016)

(3,855,900)

(647)

(235,667)

(9,066)

24,073

(1,382,854)

(864,956)

-

(330,845)

Training, safety and security costs

(973,342)

(902,890)

Other

(598,978)

(566,589)

(1,292,262)

260,195

Share based payments (expense)/reversal
Other operating expenses
Directors emoluments
Impairment of assets

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Finance income

6

68,779

31,849

Finance costs

7

(2,278,975)

(245,258)

(625,000)

-

(4,127,458)

46,786

2,004,608

1,267,595

(2,122,850)

1,314,381

(740,288)

(3,170,910)

(2,863,138)

(1,856,529)

Fair value decrease of embedded derivative
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD BEFORE TAX
Income tax benefit

8

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic (loss)/profit per shares (cents per share)

9

(0.86)

0.55

Diluted (loss)/profit per share (cents per share)

9

(0.86)

0.55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2014
Notes

2014

2013

$

$

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

10

3,905,875

891,319

Trade and other receivables

11

1,307,146

1,688,416

Inventories

12

3,378,848

2,614,269

8,591,869

5,194,004

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Loan receivable

13

4,321

4,288

Financial asset at fair value

14

1,324,963

82,392

Deferred tax asset

8

10,785,562

8,865,703

Property plant and equipment

15

57,505,519

53,731,271

Total non-current assets

69,620,365

62,683,654

Total assets

78,212,234

67,877,658

7,072,062

7,222,151

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

16

Bank overdraft

10

101,614

-

Interest bearing liabilities

17

4,327,034

1,359,183

Income tax payable

7,658

7,824

Total current liabilities

11,508,368

8,589,158

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities

17

12,106,900

1,871,321

Provisions

18

447,870

503,465

Total non-current liabilities

12,554,770

2,374,786

Total Liabilities

24,063,138

10,963,944

Net assets

54,149,096

56,913,714

Equity
Share capital

19

62,695,889

62,695,889

Reserves

20

(12,357,634)

(11,715,866)

3,810,841

5,933,691

54,149,096

56,913,714

Accumulated profit
Total equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2013
Redeemable
preference
shares

Ordinary shares
A$

A$

Share based
payment
reserve

Foreign currency
translation
reserve

Accumulated
profit/(loss)

Total

A$

A$

A$

A$

For the year ended 31 December 2013
Balance as at 1 January 2013

60,695,688

301

7,032,369

(15,675,845)

4,619,310

56,671,823

-

-

-

-

1,314,381

1,314,381

Foreign currency translation

-

-

-

(3,170,910)

-

(3,170,910)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

-

(3,170,910)

1,314,381

(1,856,529)

1,999,900

-

-

-

-

1,999,900

-

-

98,520

-

-

98,520

Total transaction with owners

1,999,900

-

98,520

-

-

2,098,420

Balance at 31 December 2013

62,695,588

301

7,130,889

(18,846,755)

5,933,691

56,913,714

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for year
Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Issue of ordinary shares (net of costs)
Issue of options

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2014
Redeemable
preference
shares

Ordinary shares
A$

A$

Share based
payment
reserve

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Accumulated
profit

Total

A$

A$

A$

A$

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Balance as at 1 January 2014

62,695,588

301

7,130,889

(18,846,755)

5,933,691

56,913,714

-

-

-

-

(2,122,850)

(2,122,850)

Foreign currency translation

-

-

-

(740,288)

-

(740,288)

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

-

-

(740,288)

(2,122,850)

(2,863,138)

Total comprehensive income for the period
Loss for year
Other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
-

-

98,520

-

-

98,520

Total transaction with owners

Issue of options

-

-

98,520

-

-

98,520

Balance at 31 December 2014

62,695,588

301

7,229,409

(19,587,043)

3,810,841

54,149,096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
as at 31 December 2014

Notes

2014

2013

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Net cash generated in operations

43,235,547

40,380,449

(40,852,104)

(37,413,068)

2,383,443

2,967,381

68,779

31,849
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Finance income received
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for property, plant and equipment

13,905

560,898

(8,990,187)

(8,467,041)

Loan advanced

-

(3,844)

(8,907,503)

(7,878,138)

-

1,999,900

Proceeds from borrowings

13,640,872

2,734,548

Repayment of borrowings

(4,421,653)

(1,805,399)

Payments for finance cost

(202,860)

(213,913)

Net cash inflow from financing activities

9,016,359

2,715,136

Increase/(decrease) in net cash and cash equivalents

2,492,299

(2,195,621)

Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issue of ordinary shares and options, net
of costs

Foreign currency translation

420,643

240,550

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

891,319

2,846,390

3,804,261

891,319

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2014

10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period ended 31 December 2014
1.

Reporting entity
Vantage Goldfields Limited ("the Company") is a for-profit company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated
financial statements of the Company as at and for the period ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group"). The Group is primarily involved in the mining,
development and exploration of mineral properties in South Africa.

2.

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial statements comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB).
The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 April 2015.
Financial position
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a loss after tax of $2,122,850 (2013: profit of
$1,314,821). At 31 December 2014, the current liabilities exceeded the current assets by $2,916,500 (2013:
$3,395,154) and there is a net cash position (net of bank overdraft) of $3,804,261 (2013: $891,319). Included in
the working capital deficiency is the current portion of the Alchemist Incorporated loan of $2,999,775. In
January 2015, the Group completed a capital reduction and share buy-back which resulted in a cash outflow of
$2,481,169.
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of
normal business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of
business.
The Directors are aware that the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and its ability to pay its debts as
and when they fall due, is largely dependent on successfully managing its short to medium term liquidity
position and achieving profitable operations.
The key factors impacting the Group’s liquidity are the ability of the Group to maintain profitable operations
and secure further funding. The ability to achieve profitable operations is sensitive to key drivers including the
gold price, foreign exchange rates, operating costs and stability in production.
In order to improve the liquidity position and in the event of negative movements in the above drivers, the
directors are confident of securing further working capital sourced from one or more of the following:




The ongoing support from its current creditors and financiers
The ability of the Group to scale down its capital expenditure and to conserve cash
Obtain loan funding from alternative financiers

Subsequent to year-end, the following actions have commenced which are expected to improve the working
capital position of the Group but have not been finalised at the date the financial statements were authorised
for issue:

The repayment terms for the loan with Alchemists Incorporated were amended, resulting in a payment
holiday for the March 2015 quarter. In addition, discussions have been initiated with a view to
obtaining further deferments in quarterly repayments based on the Group’s liquidity constraints.

Discussions are taking place to restructure the company’s Black Economic Empowerment (“BEE”)
holding. Its current partner, Lomshiyo Investments Pty Ltd, until now, has been financed by the
Company. The proposed restructure is expected to result in a significant cash inflow for the Group.

The Group has applied to the Industrial Development Corporation for a loan to further develop the
Barbrook mine.
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The combination of the above factors gives rise to material uncertainty in relation to the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, and as a result, the Group may not be able to realise its assets and extinguish its
liabilities in the normal course of business and at amounts stated in the financial statements.
3.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information has been rounded to the nearest dollar. They are prepared on the historical cost
basis, except where the accounting policies disclosed below require a fair value determination.
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods of the revision affects both current and future periods.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are
described in the following notes:
Note 4(d) – Deferred tax asset (utilisation of unused tax credits)
Note 4(e) - Gold in process
Note 4(g) - Provision for decommissioning and restoration
Note 4(o) - Mineral reserve estimates

4.

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group for the period presented in this
consolidated financial statements.

4(a)

Basis of consolidation

4(a)(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial results of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases.
The Group accounts for the acquisition of subsidiaries at cost less impairment.

4(a)(ii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
preparing consolidated financial statements.

4(a)(iii)

Acquisitions from entities under common control
Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholder that
controls the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period
presented or, if later, at the date that common control was established. The assets and liabilities acquired are
recognised at the carrying amounts recognised previously in the Group’s controlling shareholder’s consolidated
financial statements. The components of equity of the acquired entities are added to the same components within
Group equity. Any cash paid for the acquisition is recognised directly in equity.

4(b)

Property, plant and equipment

4(b)(i)

Mine development costs and infrastructure
Mine development costs and infrastructure, comprising mining properties, development costs and mine plant facilities,
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Borrowing costs incurred in respect of assets requiring a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended future
use are capitalised to the date that the assets are substantially completed.
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Expenditure incurred to develop new ore bodies, to define mineralisation in existing mineral reserves, to
establish or expand productive capacity, is capitalised until commercial levels of production are achieved, at
which time mine development and infrastructure is available for use and are depreciated as set out below.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The cost of the
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net
within other income in profit and loss.
4(b)(ii)

Mineral rights
Mineral rights are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

4(b)(iii)

Exploration and evaluation assets
All exploration costs are expensed until directors conclude that a future economic benefit is more likely than
not of being realised. In evaluating if expenditures meet this criterion to be capitalised, the directors utilise
several different sources of information.
Cost on greenfields sites being those where the Group does not have any mineral deposits which are being
mined or developed, are expensed as incurred until the directors are able to demonstrate that future economic
benefits are probable, which generally will be the establishment of proved and probable reserves at this
location.
Costs relating to extensions of mineral deposits, which are already being mined or developed, including
expenditure on the definition of mineralisation of such mineral deposits, are capitalised as a mine development
cost.

4(b)(iv)

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss so as to write off the depreciable amount of the assets, which is the
costs less the residual value, over their estimated useful lives, using a method that reflects the pattern in which
the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity.
Where significant parts of an item have different useful lives to the item itself, these parts are depreciated
separately over their estimated useful lives.
Depreciation is determined to give a fair and systematic charge in the profit or loss taking into account the
nature of a particular ore body and the method of mining of that ore body.


Mining assets, including mine development and infrastructure costs, mine plant facilities and evaluation
costs, are depreciated to their estimated residual value over the life of the mine using the units-ofproduction method, based on estimated proved and probable ore reserves related to the infrastructure.



Where it is anticipated that the life of mine will significantly exceed the proved and probable reserves,
the life of mine is estimated using a methodology that takes account current exploration information to
assess the likely recoverable gold from a particular area. Such estimates are adjusted for the level of
confidence in the assessment and the probability of conversion to reserves. The probability of
conversion is based on historical experience of similar mining and geological conditions.
Proved and probable ore reserves reflect the estimated quantities of economically recoverable reserves,
which can be recovered in future from known mineral deposits.
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Other
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Vehicles – 10 years

Furniture and equipment – 3 years
The residual value, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are re-assessed annually.

4(c)
(i)

Impairment
Financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include default or delinquency by
a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security. In
addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its objective
evidence of impairment.
The Group considers evidence of impairment for individual assets at both a specific asset and collective level.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. All individually significant assets
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. In assessing collective impairment the
Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred,
adjusted for management's judgement as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
All impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. An
impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii)

Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that largely are
independent from other assets and groups.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Impairment losses are reversed when they have been previously allocated to goodwill.
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4(d)

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to goodwill on a business combination or items recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they probably will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the
liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

4(e)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Gold on hand represents production on
hand after the smelting process. Gold-in-process represents either production in broken ore form or production
in the metallurgical process. Cost includes all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is determined on the following basis:

Gold on hand and gold-in-process is valued at the weighted average cost, an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity, at the relevant stage of production.

Consumable stores are valued at the weighted average cost, after appropriate adjustment for
redundant and slow-moving items.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
cost of completion and selling expenses.

4(f)

Financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments
The group holds a derivative financial instrument as a result of the settlement method option permitted under
its unsecured loan facility. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value with any directly attributable transaction costs recognised in
profit or loss as they are incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-derivative financial instruments
A financial instrument is recognised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Group’s
obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. Financial assets are derecognised if
the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the
financial asset to another party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.
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Measurement
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, noncurrent liabilities, and trade and other payables.
Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value
through profit or loss, any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition nonderivative financial instruments are measured as described below.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in note 4(i).
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost less
impairment losses, using the effective interest method.
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
raising of the funds, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any
difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income over the period of borrowings.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to issue of ordinary shares and options are recognised as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.
4(g)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of
a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The pre-tax discount rate used to determine the present
value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of discount is recognised as a finance expense.
Environmental rehabilitation obligation
Non-current environmental obligations comprising decommissioning and restoration are based on the Group's
environmental management plans, in compliance with the current environmental and regulatory requirements.
The Group's mining and exploration activities are subject to various laws and regulations governing the
protection of the environment and the Group's environmental management plan. The Group recognises
management's estimate of the value of liabilities for asset rehabilitation obligations in the period in which they
are incurred. A corresponding increase to the carrying amount of the related asset with respect to
decommissioning obligations is recorded and depreciated over the life of the mine. Where a related asset is not
easily identifiable with a liability, the change in estimate over the course of the year is recognised in profit or
loss. Actual costs incurred in future periods could differ materially from the estimates. Additionally, future
changes to environmental laws and regulations could increase the extent of reclamation and remediation work
required to be performed by the Group.
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Decommissioning provision
The provision for decommissioning represents the estimated cost that will rise from rectifying damage caused
before production commenced.
Decommissioning costs are provided for at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation,
using estimated future cash flows based on current prices. When this provision gives access to future economic
benefits, an asset is recognised and included within mining infrastructure. The unwinding of the decommissioning
obligation is included in profit and loss. The estimated future costs of decommissioning obligations are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances or changes in law or technology. The estimates are
discounted at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability.
Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account when determining the provision.
Restoration costs
The provision for restoration represents the cost of restoring the site damage after the commencement of
production. Increases in the provision are charged to profit or loss as a cost of production.
Gross restoration costs are estimated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle obligations,
using estimated future cash flows based on current prices. The estimates are discounted at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Expenditure on ongoing restoration costs is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
4(h)

Revenue
Revenue from the sale of gold and silver are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of value added taxation (VAT) or goods and services tax (GST), returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods.
In the case of gold bullion, this occurs when it is delivered to the relevant refinery. In any other instances timing
will be dependent on the terms of the individual contract.

4(i)

Finance income and costs
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and dividend income. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised on the date that
the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend
date.
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions and
impairment losses recognised on financial assets. Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest
method.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

4(j)

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss in the period during which services are rendered by employees.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits consists of leave pay obligations which are accumulated compensated absences
classified as a vesting benefit whereby employees are entitled to cash payment upon leaving the entity.
The expected cost of the benefit is recognised when the employees render service that increases their
entitlement to future compensated absences. The amount is measured as the additional amount the entity
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
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4(k)

Leases
Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

4(l)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for the effective interest and payments during the
period, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in profit or losses.
Foreign operations
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated to Australian dollars at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations, excluding foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to
Australian dollars at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
The functional currency of the South African operations is the South African Rand.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and such differences have been
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve ("FCTR"). When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part
or in full, the cumulative balance in the reserve is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.
When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned
nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are
considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognised in other comprehensive
income, and are presented within equity in the FCTR.

4(m)

Determination of fair values
A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the
assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
Non derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance
leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar lease agreements.

4(n)

Comparative information
The comparative period refers to 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013.
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4(o)

Mineral resource and reserve estimates
Mineral Resource and Reserves are estimates of the amount of product that can be economically and legally
extracted from the Group's properties. In order to calculate the reserves, estimates and assumptions are
required about a range of geological, technical and economic factors, including but not limited to quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, productions costs, transport costs, commodity demand,
commodity prices and exchange rates.
Estimating the quantity and grade of the Mineral Reserves requires the size, shape and depth of ore bodies to
be determined by analysing geological data such as the logging and assaying of drill samples. This process may
require complex and difficult geological judgement and calculations to interpret the data. Changes in reported
resources and reserves may affect the Group's financial results and financial position in a number of ways
including:




4(p)

Asset carrying values may be impacted due to changes in estimates of future cash flows.
Amortisation charged to the income statement may change where such charges are calculated using the
units of production basis.
Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental provisions may change due to changes in
estimated resources after expectations about the timing or costs of these activities.

Share-based payment transactions
(i) Equity settled transactions:
The Group provides benefits to employees (including directors) of the Group and other service providers or
strategic equity partners in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees or other parties
render services or provide goods in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-settled transactions’).
The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined using an option pricing method.
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of Vantage Goldfields Limited (‘market conditions’).
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting date’).
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects:
(a)
the extent to which the vesting period has expired; and
(b)
the number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors of the Group, will ultimately vest.
This opinion is formed based on the best available information at balance sheet date. No adjustment is made
for the likelihood of market performance conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in
the determination of fair value at grant date.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional
upon a market condition.
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any increase in the value of the
transaction as a result of the modification, as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new award are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.
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Where shares are issued at a discount to fair value either by reference to the current market price or by virtue
of the Group providing financing for the share purchase on favourable terms, the value of the discount is
considered a share based payment.
The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
(ii) Cash settled transactions:
The Group also provides benefits to employees in the form of cash-settled share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for cash, the amounts of which are determined by reference to
movements in the price of the shares of the Company.
The ultimate cost of these cash-settled transactions will be equal to the actual cash paid to the employees,
which will be the fair value at settlement date less the applicable exercise price.
The cumulative cost is recognised as a liability between grant date and settlement. The periodic determination
of this liability is as follows:
(a) at each reporting date between grant and settlement, the fair value of the award is determined;
(b) during the vesting period, the liability recognised at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at
that date multiplied by the elapsed portion of the vesting period;
(c) from the end of the vesting period until settlement, the liability recognised is the full fair value of the
liability at the reporting date; and
(d) all changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss for the period.
The fair value of the liability is determined, initially and at each reporting date until it is settled. For the current
financial year an option pricing model was applied, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
award was granted, and the extent to which employees have rendered service to date.
4(q)

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude
any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares, adjusted for any bonus element.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the Company, adjusted for:
 costs of servicing equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends;
 the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have
been recognised as expenses; and
 other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the
dilution of potential ordinary shares;
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus element.

4(r)

Changes in accounting policies
Except for the changes below, the Group has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in Note 4 to all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.
The Group has adopted the following new standards and amendments to standards, including any consequential
amendments to other standards, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2014:
a. AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (2011)
b. AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
c.
d.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to AASB 101)
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The nature and effects of the changes are explained below.
(a) Subsidiaries
As a result of AASB 10 (2011), the Group has changed its accounting policy for determining whether it has control
over and consequently whether it consolidates its investees. AASB 10 (2011) introduces a new control model that
focuses on whether the Group has power over an investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and ability to use its power to affect those returns.
This change has had no impact on the financial statements.
(b)Disclosure of interests in other entities
As a result of AASB 12, the Group has expanded its disclosures about its interests in subsidiaries (see Note 23).
(c)Fair value measurement
AASB 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value
measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other AASBs. It unifies the definition of
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. It replaces and expands the disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements in other AASBs, including AASB 7.
In accordance with the transitional provisions of AASB 13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement
guidance prospectively and has not provided any comparative information for new disclosures.
Notwithstanding the above, the change had no significant impact on the measurements of the Group’s assets and
liabilities.
(d)Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income
As a result of the amendments to AASB 101, the Group has modified the presentation of items of other
comprehensive income in its statement of comprehensive income, to present separately items that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in future periods from those that would never be. Comparative information has been
re-presented accordingly.

4(s)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.
Those which may be relevant to the Group are set out below. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards
early.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments (2010), AASB 9 Financial Instruments (2009)
AASB 9 (2009) introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. Under
AASB 9 (2009), financial assets are classified and measured based on the business model in which they are held
and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows. AASB 9 (2010) introduces additional changes relating to
financial liabilities. The IASB currently has an active project to make limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements of AASB 9 and add new requirements to address the impairment of financial assets
and hedge accounting.
AASB 9 (2010) and (2009) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
adoption permitted. The adoption of these standards is expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial
assets, but no impact on the Group’s financial liabilities.
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5.

2014

2013

$

$

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries

12,839,126

10,774,746

Contributions to defined contribution plans

746,079

584,904

Liability for long service leave

178,230

(2,161)

Cash – settled share based payment transactions

9,066
13,772,501

6.

Finance income
Interest from cash accounts

7.

(24,073)
11,333,416

67,960

27,868

South African Revenue Service

410

1,800

Interest on deposits

409

2,181

68,779

31,849

2014

2013

$

$

Finance costs
Recognised in profit and loss
Interest on:
- bank overdraft
- finance lease
- trade and other payables
- South African Revenue Service
- Alchemists Incorporated
- Finance Worldwide Ltd
- unwinding of discount on provisions for restoration and
decommissioning
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7,407

22,482

191,972

188,386

3,481

2,807

-

238

2,009,712

-

55,714

18,634

10,689

12,711

2,278,975

245,258

8.

Income tax
Income tax expense
Current tax expense
Prior year adjustment
Deferred tax (benefit)
Total tax (benefit)

(2,004,608)
(2,004,608)

(162,768)
(1,104,827)
(1,267,595)

Deferred tax (benefit)/ expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Recognition) and utilisation of tax losses
(Recognition) and utilisation of unredeemed capex
Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense

(2,807,540)
802,932
(2,004,608)

1,158,980
192,667
(2,456,474)
(1,104,827)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
(Loss)/profit for the year
Total tax (benefit)/expense
(Loss)/profit excluding income tax

(2,122,850)
(2,004,608)
(4,127,458)

1,314,382
(1,267,595)
46,787

(1,238,237)
4,453
1,374,315
49,904
(3,583,797)
1,388,754
(2,004,608)

14,036
(14,298)
937,464
(162,768)
23,977
(697)
(2,816,366)
751,057
(1,267,595)

21,610,913
69,019
124,557
71,343
21,875,832

16,602,946
90,641
80,219
16,773,806

(11,065,080)
(25,190)
(11,090,270)
10,785,562

(7,885,033)
(23,070)
(7,908,103)
8,865,703

Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax
Tax effect for foreign jurisdiction
Non-deductible expenses
Prior year adjustment
Changes in timing differences
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets
Current year losses for which no deferred asset was recognised
Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax asset
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Unredeemed capex
Embedded derivative
Leave pay accrual
Provisions
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Property, plant and equipment
Environmental rehabilitation
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset
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Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

Property, plant and
equipment
Environmental
Rehabilitation Fund
Unredeemed Capex
Embedded
Derivative
Leave Pay Accrual
Provisions
Net Tax Assets

Net balance
1 January
$

Recognised
in profit
and loss
$

Recognised
in OCI
$

(7 885 033)

(3 207 505)

27 458

(11 065 080)

(23 070)
16 602 946

(2 425)
5 118 514

305
(110 547)

(25 190)
21 610 913

21 610 913

90 641
80 219
8 865 703

69 019
34 315
(7 310)
2 004 608

(398)
(1 567)
(84 749)

69 019
124 558
71 342
10 785 562

(370 500)
124 558
71 342
21 436 313

Deferred
tax Asset
$

Net
$

Deferred
Tax Liability
$
(11 065 080)
(25 190)

439 519

(10 650 751)

In 2011 the previously unrecognized deferred tax asset arising from the unredeemed capex was recognised as
management considered it probable that future taxable profits would be available against which they can be utilized.
The unredeemed capex relates to Makonjwaan Imperial Mining Company (Pty) Ltd, a Group entity that owns and
operates the Lily mine. Management believe that the deferred tax asset is recoverable based on the production
levels achieved in 2014 and budgets for 2015 and beyond.
Additionally management has estimated unrecognised unredeemed capital expenditure claims of $42,074,087 (2013:
$48,224,449) which can be offset against future taxable income. Unrecognised unredeemed capital expenditure
claims relate to Barbrook Mines (Pty) Ltd, a Group entity that owns and develops the Barbrook mine. The benefit of
these deductions has not been brought to account as the Barbrook mine is still at a start-up phase. The benefit will
only be obtained if:
(a)
(b)
(c)

(a) the subsidiary derives future assessable income of a nature and of sufficient amount to enable the benefit to be
realised;
(b) the subsidiary continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the law; and
(c) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Group entity in realising the benefit.

2014
$
9.

Earnings Per Share
Basic (loss)/profit per share (cents per share)

(0.86)

Diluted (loss)/profit per share (cents per share)

10.

2013
$
0.55

(0.86)

0.55

Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per share

(2,122,850)

1,314,381

Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue in calculation
of basic earnings per share

(2,122,850)

1,314,381

247,314,532

239,807,683

Deposit accounts

2,317,915

454,197

Bank accounts

1,586,810

435,654

1,150

1,468

3,905,875

891,319

Bank overdrafts used for cash management purposes

(101,614)

-

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flow

3,804,261

891,319

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Bank balances

Cash on hand
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11.

12.

Trade & Other Receivables

2014
$

Trade debtors

342,210

Sundry receivables

461,774

325,276

Indirect tax receivables

503,162

1,015,154

1,307,146

1,688,416

1,207,645

805,241

361,943

364,437

1,809,260

1,444,591

3,378,848

2,614,269

4,321

4,288

Gold in process
Consumable stores - at cost

Loan Receivable
Eastern Goldfields Mine Rehabilitation Trust

14.

347,986

Inventories
Gold on hand

13.

2013
$

Financial assets at fair value
The table below analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets. These fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used. The
different levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
31 December 2014
Green Horizon Environmental Rehabilitation Fund
Embedded derivative

Level 1
89,963
-

Level 2
1,235,000

Level 3
-

Total
89,963
1,235,000

Total financial assets carried at fair value

89,963

1,235,000

-

1,324,963

Green Horizon Environmental Rehabilitation Fund
The environmental rehabilitation fund is restricted solely for the rehabilitation and protection of the surface land
and water resources distributed as a result of the mining activity conducted by the Group. The fund invests in
securities listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange.
Opening balance
Foreign translation currency reserve
Fair value adjustment

82,392
(1,368)
8,939
89,963
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74,344
(4,144)
12,192
82,392

Embedded derivative
The embedded derivative is the fair value of a series of gold put options that are embedded within the
unsecured loan (refer note 17) taking into account the relevant exchange rates, gold price and volatility of the
markets at each reporting date. The fair value has been determined using an option pricing methodology.
Value at inception
Fair value adjustment

15.

Property, Plant & Equipment
Group 2014
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
impairment

Total
$

1,860,000
(625,000)

-

1,235,000

-

Mine
development
&
infrastructure
$

Mineral rights
&
rehabilitation
assets
$

68,295,814

64,405,482

3,890,332

(10,790,295)

(10,091,317)

(698,978)

Net book value

57,505,519

54,314,165

3,191,354

Net carrying amount at the beginning of the period

53,731,271

50,303,987

3,427,284

Additions

8,931,914

8,990,187

(58,273)

Disposals

(46,444)

(46,444)

-

Effect of foreign currency translation

(1,023,691)

(963,029)

(60,662)

Amortisation charge for the period

(116,996)

-

(116,996)

Depreciation charge for the period

(3,970,535)

(3,970,535)

-

Net carrying amount at the end of the period

57,505,519

54,314,165

3,191,354

Included in mine development and infrastructure are certain mining assets with a carrying value of $4,693,278
(2013: $4,369,971) purchased under a finance lease (see note 17).

Total

Mine
development
&
infrastructure

Mineral rights
&
rehabilitation
assets

$

$

$

Group 2013
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation and
impairment

60,586,056

56,570,802

4,015,254

(6,854,785)

(6,266,816)

(587,969)

Net book value

53,731,271

50,303,986

3,427,285

Net carrying amount at the beginning of the period

53,584,354

49,773,764

3,810,590

8,414,258

8,467,041

(52,783)

Additions
Disposals

(581,576)

(581,576)

-

Scrapping of assets

(1,085,224)

(1,085,224)

-

Effect of foreign currency translation

(2,984,164)

(2,771,844)

(212,320)

Amortisation charge for the period

(118,203)

-

(118,203)

Depreciation charge for the period

(3,167,329)

(3,167,329)

-

(330,845)

(330,845)

-

53,731,271

50,303,987

3,427,284

Impairment
Net carrying amount at the end of the period

16.

Trade & Other Payables
Current

2014
$

2013
$

Trade payables

4,885,609

5,189,198

Accruals and sundry payables

1,428,174

1,458,473

Share based payment liability (refer Note 28)
Leave pay accrual

17.

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Unsecured

37,985

29,110

720,294

545,370

7,072,062

7,222,151

2014

2013

$

$

Interest bearing
Convertible loan – Finance Worldwide Limited
The loan facility of USD500,000 was drawn down on 30 August 2013. The
loan bears interest at 10% per annum. Interest is repayable annually at
calendar year end. The loan together with interest accrued and remaining
unpaid shall be repayable in full prior to expiry of the loan term of thirty
months. The Lender may at any time and in its absolute discretion, serve a
written demand on the company requiring that the company convert the full
amount or part only of the facility and accrued interest into fully paid shares
of the company at a conversion price of AUD0.10 per share.

612,933

582,705

Alchemists Incorporated
The loan bears interest at 19.2% per annum and principal and interest is
repayable in 12 quarterly repayments. Repayments can be made either in
cash or gold at the discretion of the borrower. The loan may be extended for
a period of 24 months to 31 March 2019.

13,187,566

-

Less: Short term portion classified as current liabilities

(2,999,775)

(19,295)

Total unsecured long term liabilities

10,800,724

563,410

1,026,064

1,788,567

453,537

859,232

Secured
Interest bearing
Standard Bank Vehicle and Asset Finance
Atlas Copco Customer Finance
Sandvik Mining Systems (Africa) a division of Sandvik (Pty) Ltd

1,153,834

-

(1,327,259)

(1,339,888)

1,306,176

1,307,911

Total short term liabilities

4,327,034

1,359,183

Total long term liabilities

12,106,900

1,871,321

Total liabilities

16,433,934

3,230,504

Less: Short term portion classified as current liabilities
Total secured long term liabilities
Secured and Unsecured

These financing arrangements bear interest at the South African bank overdraft rate less between 0% and 1.7%
and are repayable in monthly instalments inclusive of interest.
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18.

2014
$

Provisions

2013
$

Non Current
Provision for decommissioning
Balance at beginning of period

271,774

316,386

Decrease in provision

(31,425)

(33,828)

5,957

6,855

(4,511)

(17,638)

241,795

271,775

Unwinding of discount
Effect of foreign currency translation
Balance at end of the period
Provision for restoration
Balance at beginning of period

231,690

259,255

Decrease in provision

(26,847)

(18,955)

Unwinding of discount
Effect of foreign currency translation
Balance at end of the period

38

5,077

5,844

(3,845)

(14,454)

206,075

231,690

447,870

503,465

19. Share Capital

2014
No

31 Dec 2014
$

Issued Capital
Movement in Ordinary Shares
Opening balance at 1 January 2014

247,314,532

62,695,588

-

-

247,314,532

62,695,588

Issued of during the year
Balance at 31 December 2014
Share issue costs

-

Balance at 31 December 2014

62,695,588

Redeemable Preference Shares
Movement in redeemable preference shares
301

Opening balance at 1 January 2014
Issued during the year

-

Redeemed during the year

-

Balance at 31 December 2014

301

Total Equity

62,695,889

Share Capital
31 December 2013

31 Dec 2013
No.

31 Dec 2013
$

Issued Capital
Movement in Ordinary shares
Opening balance at 1 January 2013
Issued during the year
Balance at 31 December 2013

227,314,532

60,695,688

20,000,000

1,999,900

247,314,532

62,695,588

Share issue costs

-

Balance at 31 December 2013

62,695,588

Redeemable Preference Shares
Movement in redeemable preference shares
301

Opening balance at 1 January 2013
Issued during the year

-

Redeemable during the year

301

Balance at 31 December 2013
Total Equity

62,695,889

Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares entitle their holder to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote,
either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the company. All shares are fully paid. The Group does not have any par
value in respect of its issued shares.
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Options
As at 31 December 2014 the Company has issued the following unexpired options :

Notes
(i)

Number
3,600,000

Total number of Options

Exercise
price

Expiry
date

0.15

31 December 2017

3,600,000

(i)

These options were issued to senior management on 2 January 2013. The options will vest as to one third on 31
December 2013, one third on 31 December 2014 and one third on 31 December 2015.The value ascribed to these
options was $295,560 based on a Black Scholes option pricing valuation which has been recognised in the option
reserve, spread over the three year vesting period.

20.

Reserves
2014
$
Share based payment reserve

2013
$

7,229,409

7,130,889

Foreign currency translation reserve

(19,587,043)

(18,846,755)

Total

(12,383,053)

(11,715,866)

(i) Share based payment reserve
The Share based payment reserve represents the fair value of options issued to third parties
Beginning of financial period
Issue of share options during the year
End of the financial period

7,130,889

7,032,369

98,520

98,520

7,229,409

7,130,889

(ii) Foreign currency translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences rising from the translation of foreign operations.
Beginning of financial period

(18,846,755)

(15,675,845)

Foreign currency translation

(740,288)

(3,170,910)

(19,587,043)

(18,846,755)

End of the financial period
21.

Commitments & Contingencies
Finance Lease Commitments
Within 1 year

1,527,424

1,504,155

Between 1 and 5 years

1,427,343

1,390,242

Total future lease payments

2,954,767

2,894,397

Less: future finance charges

(321,332)

(246,598)

Lease liability

2,633,435

2,647,799

Current lease liability

1,327,259

1,339,888

Non-current lease liability

1,306,176

1,307,911

Lease liability

2,633,435

2,647,799

Represented by:
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Contingent Liabilities
Mine2Market
The concentrate Off-Take Agreement between Barbrook Mines (Pty) Limited and Mine2Market was terminated on
1 November 2012. Mine2Market have contended that they have suffered losses as a result of the termination and
are claiming compensatory damages from the Company. This contention is being disputed by the Company and the
Directors are of the view that the Company has not breached the agreement. The Company has not recognised any
liabilities relating to the contract termination as the dispute resolution process is currently ongoing and is yet to be
finalised. The amount payable, if any, on conclusion of the dispute resolution process cannot currently be reliably
estimated. This dispute has now gone to arbitration.
Financial Guarantees Issued
Vantage Goldfields SA (Pty) Ltd, a subsidiary of the company, has provided a surety of $4.2 million in favour of
Standard Bank SA Limited for the banking facilities provided to the Group.
There were no other contingent liabilities outstanding at 31 December 2014.

22.

Reconciliation of Loss Before Income Tax Net of Cash Outflow from Operations

(Loss)/profit for the period before income tax

2014

2013

$

$

(4,127,458)

46,786

Amortisation

116,996

118,203

Depreciation

3,970,535

3,167,329

Adjusted for:

Impairment
Loss on disposal of mining assets
Profit on disposal of mining assets
Fair value adjustment
Fair value adjustment on embedded derivative
Finance costs
Finance income

-

330,845

31,523

1,128,639

-

(21,111)

(8,660)

(12,204)

625,000

-

2,278,975

245,258

(68,779)

(31,849)

Share option expense

98,520

98,520

Share based payment

9,066

(24,073)

Increase in inventory

(764,578)

(127,395)

381,270

(665,991)

(158,969)

(1,285,576)

2,383,443

2,967,381

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables
Net cash generated from operations
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23.

Subsidiaries

2014
Interest
%

Vantage Goldfields SA (Pty) Ltd ("VGSA")
Vantage Goldfields (Pty) Ltd ( i)

24.

2013
Interest
%

100
74

100
74

Makonjwaan Imperial Mining Company (Pty) Ltd(i)
Eastern Goldfields Exploration (Pty) Ltd(i)

85
74

85
74

Centurion Mining Co (Pty) Ltd(i)
Makonjwaan Properties 28 Henry Nettman (Pty) Ltd(i)

74
74

74
74

Barbrook Mines (Pty) Ltd(i)
Lomshiyo Investments (Pty) Ltd ("Lomshiyo") (i) and (ii)

74
-

74
-

(i)

In accordance with AASB 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, Lomshiyo is included in the consolidated
financial statements of Vantage, notwithstanding that the group owns none of the issued shares in
Lomshiyo. Lomshiyo acquired its interest in the subsidiaries of VGSA (refer to note (ii) below) via a loan
from VGSA. Lomshiyo shareholders have pledged all of their Lomshiyo shares to VGSA as security for this
loan, accordingly VGSA has effective control over Lomshiyo. The loan to Lomshiyo, is eliminated on
consolidation as an intercompany item and therefore does not appear as an asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position of Vantage.

(ii)

The ownership in these subsidiaries that is not held by VGSA is held by Lomshiyo. As per note (i) above, the
shareholders of Lomshiyo have pledged all of their shares in Lomshiyo to VGSA. Therefore no non-controlling
interest in respect of these subsidiaries is currently recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events
The company completed a capital reduction and share buy-back in January 2015 and was delisted from the ASX on 19
January 2015. The cost to the company of the share buy-back was A$2.5 million.
The company was able to re-negotiate the repayments terms of the Alchemist loan which resulted in a payment
holiday for the March 2015 quarter.
Other than the above there has not been any matter or circumstance that has arisen since the end of the financial
period that has significantly affected the operations of the Group, the results of these operations, or the state of
affairs of the Group in future financial periods.

25. Operating Segments

Identification of reportable segments
The Group has based its operating segment on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the executive
management team in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.
The group operates predominately in one operating segment, being the mining and processing of gold ore in South
Africa and sale of gold. There are no material differences between the financial information presented to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker and the financial information presented in this report. Based on this criteria, the Group has
only one operating segment, being gold production, and the segment operations and results are the same as the
Group’s results.
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26.

Related Parties
No loans have been granted to key management personnel and their related entities.
The Group entered into a Services and Support Agreement with Cheston Minerals (Pty) Limited a company controlled
by Mr M McChesney to provide office premises and office equipment to the Group at $18,880 per month which is
renewed annually. During the period the Group paid a total of $240,966 (2013: $227,697) to Cheston Minerals (Pty)
Limited.
The Parent company has made loans to its subsidiary companies. Related party transactions exist between the Parent
company and its subsidiaries and these are eliminated on consolidation.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Basic salary and fees
Incentive payments
Superannuation
Share based payment expense/(reversal)
Total remuneration
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2014
$

2013
$

1,538,558

1,337,365

(3,162)

72,529

133,396

103,387

9,066

(24,073)

1,677,858

1,489,205

(a)

Option holdings of key management personnel

The following table details phantom options issued during the year ended 31 December 2014.

-

-

-

-

-

-

Executive directors
Mike McChesney
Willo Stear
Derrick Short *
Michael Begg *

1,025,000
1,025,000
750,000
750,000

-

-

1,025,000
1,025,000
750,000
750,000

1,025,000
1,025,000
750,000
750,000

1,025,000
1,025,000
750,000
750,000

-

Total

3,550,000

-

-

3,550,000

3,550,000

3,550,000

-

Non-executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

Vested and
exercisable

Total granted

Phantom options
exercised

Not exercisable

Phantom options
granted

-

31 December 2014

Balance at end of
period 31 December
2014

Balance at beginning
of period
1 January 2014

Balance at 31 December 2014

Non-executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

Options

Balance end of
period
31 December 2014

Options Purchased

Options

Options sold

Options

Options Expired

Granted as
remuneration

31 December 2014

Balance at
1 January 2014

The following table details unlisted options held by key management personnel

Options

Options

Options

-

-

-

-

-

-

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear
Derrick Short *
Michael Begg *

1,000,000
1,000,000

-

-

-

-

1,000,000
1,000,000

Total

2,000,000

-

-

-

-

2,000,000

* Mr Derrick Short and Mr Michael Begg were appointed as executive directors on 31 January 2014.
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The following table details phantom options issued during the year ended 31 December 2013.

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,025,000
1,025,000

-

-

1,025,000
1,025,000

1,025,000
1,025,000

1,025,000
1,025,000

-

Other Key Management Personnel
Derrick Short
750,000
Michael Begg
750,000

-

-

750,000
750,000

750,000
750,000

750,000
750,000

-

Total

-

-

3,550,000

3,550,000

3,550,000

-

Non-executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk
Executive directors
Mike McChesney
Willo Stear

3,550,000

Vested and
exercisable

Total granted

Phantom options
exercised

Not exercisable

Phantom options
granted

-

31 December 2013

Balance at end of
period 31 December
2013

Balance at beginning
of period
1 January 2013

Balance at 31 December 2013

Options

Balance end of
period
31 December 2013

Options Purchased

Options

Options sold

Options

Options Expired

Granted as
remuneration

31 December 2013

Balance at
1 January 2013

The following table details unlisted options held by key management personnel

Options

Options

Options

Non-executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

-

-

-

-

-

-

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

-

-

-

-

-

-

Derrick Short
Michael Begg

-

1,000,000
1,000,000

-

-

-

1,000,000
1,000,000

Total

-

2,000,000

-

-

-

2,000,000

Other Key Management Personnel

Non-executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk

Ordinary
Shares

Balance end of
period
31 December 2014

Ordinary
Shares

Shares Purchased

Ordinary
Shares

Shares sold

On exercise of
options

31 December 2014

Granted as
remuneration

Shareholdings holdings of key management personnel

Balance at
1 January 2014

(b)

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary
Shares

575,000
325,000
200,000

-

-

-

-

575,000
325,000
200,000

Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear
Derrick Short *
Michael Begg *

14,167,246
2,084,270
1,089,508
90,228

-

-

-

-

14,167,246
2,084,270
1,089,508
90,228

Total

18,531,252

-

-

-

-

18,531,252

Non-executive directors
Stephen Turner
Terence Willsteed
Gilbert Chalk
Executive directors
Michael McChesney
Willo Stear

Ordinary
Shares

Balance end of
period
31 December 2013

Ordinary
Shares

Shares Purchased

On exercise of
options

Ordinary
Shares

Shares sold

Granted as
remuneration

31 December 2013

Balance at
1 January 2013

* Mr Derrick Short and Mr Michael Begg were appointed as executive directors on 31 January 2014.

Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary
Shares

575,000
325,000
200,000

-

-

-

-

575,000
325,000
200,000

14,167,246
2,084,270

-

-

-

-

14,167,246
2,084,270

1,089,508
90,228

-

-

-

-

1,089,508
90,228

18,531,252

-

-

-

-

18,531,252

Other Key Management Personnel
Derrick Short
Michael Begg
Total
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27.

Share Based Payments
Phantom Share Option Plan
A Phantom Option Scheme was introduced on 1 October 2010 as a long term incentive scheme. Options under this
Scheme are offered to eligible Key Management Personnel subject to the satisfaction of certain vesting and exercise
conditions. A cash amount is determined by reference to the excess of the market price of an ordinary share in the
Company over the exercise price at the time the options are exercised subject to a price cap. The options issued, vest in
equal tranches over three years subject to the recipients continued employment by the Company and have a term of five
years from date of issue.
Each tranche of these options has a price cap of A$1.00. The options vest in equal tranches over three years. No
supplementary performance conditions have been attached to the vesting of option grants.
As at 31 December 2014 the total number of phantom share options (“Options”) issued was 3,550,000 (2013: 3,550,000),
with a fair value liability of $37,985 (2013: $29,110). At 31 December 2014 the total number of options outstanding was
3,550,000 (2013: 3,550,000) with an amortised liability value of $37,985 (2013: $29,110). These options expire 30
September 2015.
The fair value of the share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a Binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

Expected volatility (%)
Risk-free interest rate range (%)
Option exercise price
Expected dividend yield range
Option cap

2014

2013

202.06%

168.86%

2.19%

2.68%

$0.40

$0.40

$1.00

$1.00

The expected volatility reflects assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome. Share price volatility is re-assessed at each reporting period based on historical share
prices.
The estimated fair value of each phantom option at reporting date is:
Year

Exercise price

Fair value
at reporting date
Tranche 1

Fair value
at reporting date
Tranche 2

Fair value
at reporting date
Tranche 3

2014

$0.40

1.07 cents

1.07 cents

1.07 cents

2013

$0.40

0.82 cents

0.82 cents

0.82 cents

The total number of phantom options issued during the periods is as follows:
Weighted Average
Exercise Price
$

Number of
Options

Phantom options
Opening balance

3,550,000

Granted during the period

-

Forfeited/Cancelled during the period

-

Exercised during the period

-

Expired during the period

-

Closing balance at 31 December 2014

3,550,000

The weighted average share price for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 4 cents.
The weighted average remaining contractual life of the above outstanding options is 0.75 years.
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$0.40

Equity Settled Options
On 2 January 2013 the Company granted 3,600,000 options to senior management. The options will vest as to one third
on 31 December 2013, one third on 31 December 2014 and one third on 31 December 2015 and expire on 31 December
2017.
During 2013, the Company granted 2,500,000 options to a third party for work performed for the company. These
options vested on issue and have been recognised as an expense. They expired on 30 September 2014.
The fair value of the share options granted is estimated as at the date of grant using a Black and Scholes model taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.

Expected volatility (%)
Risk-free interest rate range (%)
Option exercise price
Expected dividend yield range
Value per option

Equity share options

2014

2013

80.30%

80.30%

2.95%

2.95%

$0.15

$0.15

$0.0821

$0.0821

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$

Number of
Options

Opening balance

6,100,000

0.21

Granted during the period

-

-

Forfeited/Cancelled during the year

-

-

Exercised during the year

-

-

(2,500,000)

0.30

3,600,000

0.15

Expired during the year
Closing balance at 31 December 2014

28. Financial Instruments
The Group’s overall financial risk management strategy is to seek to manage the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk, commodity price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and share price risk arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. Derivative financial instruments may be used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices however these have not been used by the Group.
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The following table displays the financial instruments held at the end of the financial period:
Financial Assets and Liabilities by categories

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
carried at amortised
cost

-

3,905,875

-

-

3,905,875

1,307,146

-

-

-

1,307,146

-

-

1,324,963

-

1,324,963

1,307,146

3,905,875

1,324,963

-

6,537,984

Trade and other payables (note 16)

-

-

37,985

7,034,076

7,072,061

Bank overdraft (note 10)

-

101,614

-

-

101,614

Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)

-

-

-

16,433,934

16,433,934

Total recognised financial liabilities

-

101,614

37,985

23,468,010

23,607,609

Loans and receivables

Financial assets
carried at amortised
cost

-

891,319

-

-

891,319

1,688,416

-

-

-

1,688,416

-

-

82,392

-

82.392

1,688,416

891,319

82,392

-

2,662,127

Trade and other payables (note 16)

-

-

29,110

7,193,041

7,222,151

Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)

-

-

-

3,230,503

3,230,503

Total recognised financial liabilities

-

-

29,110

10,423,544

10,452,654

At 31 December 2014

At fair value
through profit &
loss

Financial liabilities
carried at amortised
cost

Total

Recognised Financial Assets
Cash & Cash equivalents (note 10)
Trade and other receivables (note 11)
Other financial assets
Total recognised financial assets
Recognised Financial Liabilities

At 31 December 2013

At fair value
through profit &
loss

Financial liabilities
carried at amortised
cost

Total

Recognised Financial Assets
Cash & Cash equivalents (note 10)
Trade and other receivables (note 11)
Other financial assets
Total recognised financial assets
Recognised Financial Liabilities

(i)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each entity in the Group.
The following tables represent the financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies:
Foreign currency
amount
2014
ZAR

Amount
AUD

2013
ZAR

2014
$

Rate of
exchange
2013
$

2014
$

2013
$

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents

5,903,574

6,036,139

623,886

648,663

9.46

9.31

Trade and other receivables

12,134,320

15,697,473

1,282,348

1,686,901

9.46

9.31

65,842,474

66,776,463

6,958,195

7,176,013

9.46

9.31

961,535

-

101,614

-

9.46

-

24,919,087

24,639,114

2,633,435

2,647,798

9.46

9.31

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Bank overdraft

Interest bearing liabilities

The following table demonstrates the estimated sensitivity to a 10 basis point increase and decrease in the
different exchange rates the Group is exposed to, with all other variables held constant, on equity through the
foreign currency translation reserve. Profit and loss is not affected by changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
2014
$

2013
$

ZAR/A$ + 10%

(655,018)

(609,177)

ZAR/A$ - 10%

655,018

609,177

Equity Higher/(lower)
Consolidated
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(ii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate. The Group is exposed to interest rate movement through variable
rate debt and interest bearing investment of surplus funds (cash). Other than for finance leases and a bank
overdraft, the Group has no undrawn borrowings at period end.
The following table sets out the variable interest bearing and fixed interest bearing financial instruments of
the Group:
Variable
Interest
2014
Financial Assets
Cash equivalents (note 10)
Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)
Total
2013
Financial Assets
Cash equivalents (note 10)
Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities (note 17)
Total

Fixed
Interest

3,905,875

-

(16,433,934)
(12,528,059)

-

891,319

-

(3,230,503)
(2,339,184)

-

The following table sets out the effect of an interest rise or fall on the profit on the Group:
2014
$

2013
$

Pre Tax Profit Higher/(lower)
Consolidated
Interest rates + 1%

125,281

23,392

Interest rates- 1%

(125,281)

(23,392)

(ii)

Commodity price risk exposure
The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in prevailing market commodity prices of gold. The price of gold
has fluctuated widely, particularly in recent years, and is affected by numerous factors beyond the Group’s control
including international, economic and political trends, expectations of inflation, currency exchange fluctuations,
interest rates, global or regional consumptive patterns, speculative activities and increased production due to new
extraction developments and improved extraction and production methods. The effect of these factors on the
price of gold, and therefore the financial performance of the Group cannot accurately be predicted. However, the
Group may enter into contracts to manage its commodity price risk however it has not entered into any contracts
to date.

(iii)

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents (note 10) and
trade and other receivables (note 11). The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the
counter party, with a maximum exposure equal to its carrying value. Exposure at balance date is addressed in each
applicable note.
The Group does not hold any credit derivatives to offset its credit exposure.
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. As at 31 December 2014, there were no receivables that
were past due or impaired.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk other than cash of $3,281,988 (2013: $242,657) held in Australia
at balance date within the Group.
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(iv)

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that there will be inadequate funds available to meet financial commitments as they fall due.
The Group recognises the ongoing requirement to have committed funds in place to cover both existing business
cash flows and reasonable headroom for cyclical debt fluctuations, and capital expenditure programs. The key
funding objective is to ensure the availability of flexible and competitively priced funding from alternative sources to
meet the Group’s current and future requirements. The Group utilises a detailed cash flow model to manage its
liquidity risk.
The Group attempts to accurately project the sources and uses of funds.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s contractual cash flow financial liabilities at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayments
which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.

Liabilities
As at 31 December 2014

On
demand

Less than 3
months

Trade & other payables

7,072,061

-

-

-

-

7,072,061

Convertible loan

-

-

-

612,933

-

612,933

Unsecured liability

-

-

5,340,322

11,299,703

-

16,640,025

Finance Leases

-

-

1,527,424

1,427,343

-

2,954,767

Total liabilities

7,072,061

-

7,494,424

12,103,798

-

27,279,786

Liabilities
As at 31 December 2013

On
demand

Trade & other payables

7,222,152

-

-

-

-

7,222,152

Convertible loan

-

-

19,295

563,410

-

582,705

Finance Leases

-

-

1,339,888

1,307,911

-

2,647,798

Total liabilities

7,222,152

-

1,359,888

1,871,321

-

10,452,655

Less than 3
months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5
years

3 to 12
months

Over
5 years

1 to 5
years

Total

Over
5 years

Total

(v)

Fair Values
The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities, as disclosed in the financial statements, represents their
approximate fair values. No financial assets or financial liabilities are readily traded on organised markets in
standardised form. The Group has no financial assets where carrying amount exceeds fair value at balance date.

(vi)

Capital Management
Management controls the capital of the Group in order to provide the shareholders with adequate returns and ensure
that the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
Management effectively manages the group's capital by assessing the Group's financial risks and adjusting its capital
structure in responses to include the management of debt levels and equity issues.
The Group uses cash flow forecasts to manage and adjust its capital management.
There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the Group since the
prior year.
Capital managed by the Group consists of shareholders equity.
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29.

Auditor’s Remuneration
2014
$

2013
$

Amounts received or due and receivable by KPMG Australia for:
(i)

an audit or review of the financial statement of the entity
and any other entity in the Group

(ii)

other services provided to the Group

(iii)

80,600

73,212

-

-

Taxation services

8,000

7,000

Total received by KPMG Australia

88,600

80,212

71,870

77,538

Amounts received or due and receivable by KPMG South Africa for:
(i)

an audit or review of the financial statement of any other
entity in the consolidated group

(ii)

Other assurance services

-

-

(iii)

Taxation services

-

32,933

71,870
160,470

110,471
190,683

Total received by KPMG South Africa
Total

30.

Parent Entity Disclosures
As at, and throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 the parent company of the Group was Vantage Goldfields
Limited.
Company
Company
2014
2013
$
$
Current assets

3,306,787

244,172

Total assets

66,907,528

57,637,168

Current liabilities

(3,111,444)

(43,942)

Total liabilities

(13,912,169)

(626,647)

Issued capital

62,657,088

62,695,588

Accumulated losses

(7,157,879)

(3,322,078)

Reserves

(2,503,850)

(2,362,989)

Total shareholders' equity

52,995,359

57,010,521

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive income

(3,835,801)
-

(668,134)
-

Total comprehensive income for the period

(3,835,801)

(668,134)

Results of the parent entity

The parent entity has no contingent liabilities, nor does it have any contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant or equipment.
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DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Vantage Goldfields Limited, I state that:
In the opinion of the directors of Vantage Goldfields Limited:
(a)

the consolidated financial statements and notes and Remuneration report in the Directors’ report set out on pages
8 to 44 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2014 and of its performance
for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b)

the consolidated financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 2.

(c)

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable.

(d)

this declaration has been made after receiving the declaration required to be made to the directors in accordance
with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended 31 December 2014.

On behalf of the Board

M McChesney
Sydney
10 April 2015
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